





The Oklahoma Hunter and Jumper Association (OHJA) is Oklahoma's original horse show organization. Established in 1964, OHJA was created to promote the sport of riding and showing hunters and jumpers in Oklahoma. OHJA is dedicated to serving the best interests of its members, member shows, and their exhibitors. OHJA furthers the objectives and abides by the rules of the United States Equestrian Federation, (USEF) and United States Hunter Jumper Association (USHJA), the national governing body of our sport, to which OHJA is affiliated.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

This Manual was adopted by the Oklahoma Hunter Jumper Association ("OHJA") as of August 10, 2003, to be effective as of December 1, 2002. This Manual may be amended by a majority vote of the OHJA Board of Directors. Terms used in this Manual shall have the meaning assigned below. Terms not defined below shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the OHJA Bylaws.

- (A) OHJA Competition Year. December 1 through the following November 30.
- (B) OHJA Recognized Competition. Defined in Section 3.1 of the OHJA Bylaws.
- (C) Horse. All references to a horse or horses will also be a reference to ponies, unless specifically stated otherwise.
- (D) Academy Horse. A horse that is actively used by multiple riders in a lesson program.
- (E) Lease Horse. A horse that has been leased from the owner for a minimum of six (6) consecutive months.
- (F) **Points Tables.** The Points Tables included in Appendix A to this Manual.
- (G) USEF. United States Equestrian Federation, Inc.
- (H) USEF Rules. The United States Equestrian Federation, Inc. Rules now in effect and as such Rules may hereafter be amended. Any amendment to any USEF Rule referenced in this Manual will be effective on the date of the amendment to USEF Rules.
- (I) USHJA. United States Hunter Jumper Association.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	4
PART I—OHJA Schooling Program Classes, Sections, And Awards	4
Lead Line Section	4
Mini-Stirrup Section	4
Academy Short and Long Stirrup Section	4
Short Stirrup Section	5
Long Stirrup Section	6
Academy Beginner Rider Section	6
Beginner Rider Section	7
Intermediate Rider Section	7
Rusty Stirrup Section	8
Modified Children's/Adult Section	8
Very Low Hunter Section	9
Baby Green Hunter Section	9
Low Hunter Section	9
Open Hunter Section	9
Children's Pony Hunter	9
OHJA 2' Hunter Section	9
Thoroughbred Hunter	9
Year End Awards	10
PART II—OHJA Hunter Seat Equitation Program Classes, Sections, and Awards	11
Pony Hunter Seat Equitation Classes	11
Children's Hunter Seat Equitation Classes	11
Junior Hunter Seat Equitation Classes	11
Adult Hunter Seat Equitation Classes	11
OHJA Beginner Medal Class/Ride-Off	11
OHJA 3' Medal Class/Ride-Off	12
Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Class/Ride-Off	12
Oklahoma Equitation Class	13
Year End Awards	13
PART III—OHJA Rated Hunter Program Classes, Sections, and Awards	15
Pre-Green Hunter Section	15
Green Working Hunter Section	15
Performance Hunter Section	15
Pony Hunter Classes	15
Children's Hunter Classes	15
Junior Hunter Classes	15
Amateur Adult Hunter Classes	15
Amateur Owner Hunter Classes	15
Regular Hunter Classes	16
Year End Awards	16
PART IV—OHJA Jumper Program Classes, Sections, and Awards	17
Jumping .75 to .85 Meter Jumper (2'6" to 2'9") Section	17
Jumping .90 to .95 Meter Jumper (2'11"-3'1") Section	17
Jumping 1.0 Meter Jumper (3'3") Section	17
Thoroughbred Jumper	17
Jumping 1.05 to 1.15 Meter Jumper (3'5" to 3'9") Section	17
	17
Jumping 1.2 to 1.3 Meter Jumper (3'11" to 4'3") Section	
Pony Jumper Section	17
Children's and Adult Jumper Section	17
Amateur Owner and Junior Jumper Section	18
Jumping 1.35 to 1.45 Meter Jumper (4'5" to 4'9") Section	18
Mules in Jumping Classes	18
Year End Awards	18
Appendix A—Points Tables	19
Appendix B—OHJA Award Recipients	21

#### PART I-OHJA SCHOOLING PROGRAM **Classes, Sections, and Awards**

#### Lead Line Section 1.

- **(A)** Lead Line Classes.
  - **Class Requirements.** (1)
    - (a) No fences.
    - (b) Judged on hunter seat equitation while being led.
  - Horse/Rider Eligibility. (2)
    - (a) Open to non-professional riders age 6 and under at the beginning of the OHJA Recognized Competition Year.
    - (b) Rider may not cross enter into any over fence class at the same OHJA Recognized Competition.
  - (3) OHJA Awards. None.

#### 2. **Mini-Stirrup Section (A)**

#### Mini-Stirrup Classes.

- **Class Requirements.** (1)
  - Mini-Stirrup classes may include walk, walk/trot, and walk/trot over rails. (a)
  - Rails will not exceed 4" diameter. (b)

#### (2)Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- Open to non-professional riders. (a)
- Rider may not cross enter into any other over fence class at the same OHJA Recognized (b) Competition.
- (3) OHJA Awards. None.

#### **Academy Short and Long Stirrup Section** 3.

(1)

#### Academy Short and Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes. **(A)**

#### **Class Requirements.**

- Fence heights 18". (a)
- Trotting will not be penalized. (b)
- Flat classes walk, trot only. (c)

#### (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to non-professional riders, age 10 and under for Short Stirrup and 11 and over for Long Stirrup.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in (c) the Academy Short and Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter), the Short Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- Horse must be an Academy Horse. At OHJA Recognized Schooling Competitions the Academy (d) Horse may have multiple riders in the class.
- If Academy Short or Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes are offered at an OHJA (e) Recognized Competition but do not fill, points won by a rider on an Academy Horse in Short or Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes at the same OHJA Recognized Competition will be awarded to the rider's Academy Short and Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation points.
- OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons (3) through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Academy Short and Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year.

#### **(B)** Academy Short and Long Stirrup Hunter Classes.

#### (1) **Class Requirements.**

- (a) Fence heights 18".
- (b) Trotting will not be penalized.
- Flat classes walk, trot only. (c)

#### Horse/Rider Eligibility. (2)

- Open to non-professional riders, age 10 and under for Short Stirrup and 11 and over for Long (a) Stirrup.
- Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class (b) with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.

- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Short and Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter), the Short Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (d) Horse must be an Academy Horse. At OHJA Recognized Schooling Competitions the Academy Horse may have multiple riders in the class.
- (e) Points are awarded to the rider, not a horse/rider combination. If Academy Short or Long Stirrup Hunter Classes are offered at an OHJA Recognized Competition but do not fill, points won by a rider on an Academy Horse in Short or Long Stirrup Hunter Classes at the same OHJA Recognized Competition will be awarded to the rider's Academy Short and Long Stirrup Hunter points.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Academy Short and Long Stirrup Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 4. Short Stirrup Section

## (A) Short Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.

## (1) Class Requirements.

- (a) Fence heights 18".
- (b) Flat classes walk, trot only.
- (c) Short and Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation classes may be combined.

# (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to non-professional riders, age 10 and under.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Short and Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter), the Short Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (d) Not open to riders riding Academy Horses, unless the Academy Short Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes are offered but do not fill. In that event, points won by a rider on an Academy Horse in Short Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes will be awarded to the rider's Academy Short Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation points.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Short Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year. Competition in this division will be limited to not more than two (2) years.

## (B) Short Stirrup Hunter Classes.

## (1) Class Requirements.

- (a) Fence heights 18".
- (b) Flat classes walk, trot only.
- (c) Short and Long Stirrup Hunter classes may be combined.

# (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to all horses ridden by non-professional riders, age 10 and under.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Short and Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter), the Short Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (d) Not open to riders riding Academy Horses unless the Academy Short Stirrup Hunter Classes are offered but do not fill. In that event, points won by a rider on an Academy Horse in Short Stirrup Hunter Classes will be awarded to the rider's Academy Short Stirrup Hunter points.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horse and rider combinations accumulating the most points in Short Stirrup Rider Hunter classes during the Competition Year. Competition in this division will be limited to two (2) years.

## 5. Long Stirrup Section

#### (A) Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.

## (1) Class Requirements.

- (a) Fence heights 18".
- (b) Flat classes walk, trot only.
- (c) Short and Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation classes may be combined.

## (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to non-professional riders, 11 and over.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Short and Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter), the Short Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (d) Not open to riders riding Academy Horses unless the Academy Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes are offered but do not fill. In that event, points won by a rider riding an Academy Horse in Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes will be awarded to the rider's Academy Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation points.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year. Competition in this division will be limited to two (2) years.

## (B) Long Stirrup Hunter Classes.

#### (1) Class Requirements.

- (a) Fence heights 18".
- (b) Flat classes walk, trot only.
- (c) Short and Long Stirrup Hunter classes may be combined.

## (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to all horses ridden by non-professional riders, age 11 and over.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Short and Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter), the Short Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Long Stirrup Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (d) Not open to riders riding Academy Horses unless the Academy Long Stirrup Hunter Classes are offered but do not fill. In that event, points won by a rider on an Academy Horse in Long Stirrup Hunter Classes will be awarded to the rider's Academy Long Stirrup Hunter points.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horse and rider combinations accumulating the most points in Long Stirrup Rider Hunter classes during the Competition Year. Competition in this division will be limited to two (2) years.

## 6. Academy Beginner Rider Section

## (A) Academy Beginner Rider Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.

#### (1) Class Requirements.

- (a) Fence heights 2'3".
- (b) Trotting will not be penalized.

## (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to non-professional riders.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Beginner Rider Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Beginner Rider Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (d) Horse must be an Academy Horse. At OHJA Recognized Schooling Competitions the Academy Horse may have multiple riders in the class.

- (e) If Academy Beginner Rider Hunter Seat Equitation Classes are offered at an OHJA Recognized Competition but do not fill, points won by a rider on an Academy Horse in Beginner Hunter Seat Equitation Classes at the same OHJA Recognized Competition will be awarded to the rider's Academy Beginner Hunter Seat Equitation points.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Academy Beginner Rider classes during the Competition Year.

## (B) Academy Beginner Rider Hunter Classes.

## (1) Class Requirements.

- (a) Fence heights 2'3".
- (b) Trotting will not be penalized.

## (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to all horses ridden by non-professional riders.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Beginner Rider Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Beginner Rider Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (d) Horse must be an Academy Horse. At OHJA Recognized Schooling Competitions the Academy Horse may have multiple riders in the class.
- (e) Points are awarded to the rider, not a horse/rider combination. If Beginner Hunter Classes are offered at an OHJA Recognized Competition but do not fill, points won by a rider on an Academy Horse in Beginner Hunter Classes at the same OHJA Recognized Competition will be awarded to the rider's Academy Beginner Hunter points.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Academy Beginner Rider Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 7. Beginner Rider Section

## (A) Beginner Rider Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.

(1) Class Requirements. Fence heights 2'3".

# (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to non-professional riders.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Beginner Rider Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Beginner Rider Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Beginner Rider classes during the Competition Year.

## (B) Beginner Rider Hunter Classes.

(1) Class Requirements. Fence heights 2'3".

# (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open to all horses ridden by non-professional riders.
- (b) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 2'9" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Academy Beginner Rider Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter) or the Beginner Rider Section (either Hunter Seat Equitation or Hunter).
- (3) **OHJA Awards.** OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horse and rider combinations accumulating the most points in Beginner Rider Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 8. Intermediate Rider Section

## (A) Intermediate Rider Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.

- (1) **Class Requirements.** Fence heights 2'6".
- (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Not open to professional riders.
- (b) Not open to riders who have entered classes with any fence heights of 3'0" or higher at the same OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 3'0" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (d) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Intermediate Rider Hunter Seat Equitation Section.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Intermediate Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year.

#### (B) Intermediate Rider Hunter Classes.

(1) Class Requirements. Fence heights 2'6".

## (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Not open to horses ridden by professional riders.
- (b) Not open to riders who have entered classes with any fence heights of 3'0" or higher at the same OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (c) Not open (for judging) to any rider who prior to the current Competition Year rode in any class with fence heights 3'0" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.
- (d) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has won a year end Champion or Reserve Champion in the Intermediate Rider Hunter Section.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horse and rider combinations accumulating the most points in Intermediate Rider Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 9. Rusty Stirrup Section

## (A) Rusty Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.

- (1) Class Requirements. Fence heights 2'3" and/or 2'6".
- (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.
  - (a) Open (for judging) to riders 35 and older.
  - (b) Only non-professional riders may be judged.
- (3) **OHJA Awards.** OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Rusty Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year.

#### (B) Rusty Stirrup Hunter Classes.

(1) **Class Requirements.** Fence heights 2'3" and/or 2'6".

## (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (a) Open (for judging) to riders 35 and older.
  - (b) Only non-professional riders may be judged.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horse and rider combinations accumulating the most points in Rusty Stirrup Rider Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 10. Modified Children's/Adult Section

## (A) Modified Children's/Adult Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.

- (1) **Class Requirements.** Fence heights 2'9".
- (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Open to non-professional riders.
- (3) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the riders accumulating the most points in Modified Children's/Adult Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year.

#### (B) Modified Children's/Adult Hunter Classes.

- (1) **Class Requirements.** Fence heights 2'9".
- (2) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Open to non-professional riders.
- (3) **OHJA Awards.** OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horse and rider combinations accumulating the most points in Modified Children's/Adult Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 11. Very Low Hunter Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Fence heights 2'3".
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.

(C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Very Low Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 12. Baby Green Hunter Section

(A) Class Requirements. Fence heights 2'6".

## (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (1) Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.
- (2) A baby green horse is a horse of any age that has never shown in a recognized USEF Regular Member or Local Member show over fences 3'0" or higher. A horse may show in the Baby Green Hunter Section of an OHJA Recognized Competition in no more than two Competition Years.
- (3) A horse that does not show at more than three shows prior to May 15 of a Competition Year at 3'0" or higher, may regain his baby green status on a one-time basis. In order to regain baby green status, the owner must notify the OHJA Points Secretary, via certified/return receipt prior to resumption of showing baby green in order to regain baby green status with OHJA.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Baby Green Hunter classes during the Competition Year. A horse may win the Champion award in Baby Green Hunter only once, even if the horse regains pre-green status.

#### 13. Low Hunter Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Fence heights 2'9" to 3'0".
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Low Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

#### 14. Open Hunter Section

- (A) **Class Requirements.** Fence heights 3'3" to 3'5".
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Open Hunter classes during the Competition Year

#### 15. Children's Pony Hunter Section

#### (A) Class Requirements.

- (1) Fence heights: Small ponies 2'0", medium ponies 2'3", and large ponies 2'6".
- (2) Fence spreads not to exceed fence heights.
- (3) No minimum prize money required.
- (4) To be judged on performance, soundness, manners, way of going, size of rider to mount, and suitability as a Children's Hunter. Ponies may be jogged for soundness at management's discretion.

## (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders must be Juniors.

- (1) Open to ponies ridden by a Junior exhibitor with no other age restrictions applicable.
- (2) The pony rider and/or pony may enter any Equitation Class at the OHJA Recognized Show.
- (3) The pony/rider combination is not eligible for any USEF rated class at the same OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (4) Either the pony or the rider (separately, not as a combination) may compete in any other USEF rated class at the same OHJA Recognized Competition except USEF Rated Hunter Pony classes.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the ponies accumulating the most points in OHJA Children's Hunter Pony classes during the Competition Year.

## 16. 2' Hunter Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Fence heights 2'.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in OHJA 2' Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

#### 17. Thoroughbred Hunter Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Any Hunter classes restricted to Thoroughbred horses.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.

(C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in OHJA Thoroughbred Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## Schooling Year End Awards

## 1. Requirements for Awards.

- (A) **Combination/Division of Award Categories**. The award categories for the Schooling Year End Awards may be combined or divided if the entries warrant and if approved by the Board of Directors.
- (B) **Ties.** All ties for the OHJA Schooling Year End Awards will remain tied. In the event of a tie for Champion, equal awards will be presented and no Reserve Champion award will be awarded, and in the event of a tie for Reserve Champion, equal awards will be presented.

#### 2. Requirements for Riders and Horses.

- (A) Minimum Competitions. To be eligible for the OHJA Schooling Year End Award in an award category, the rider, horse or horse/rider combination (the recipient of the award) must have competed in the section at a minimum of two (2) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year. In addition, they must have competed in a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year. *Exception*: If an award category is offered at only one (1) OHJA Recognized Competition during the Competition Year, the rider, horse or horse/rider combination (the recipient of the award) is eligible for a year end award provided they competed in that category at that show and they have competed in a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the competed in that category at that show and they have competed in a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competitio
- (B) Membership. Points for riders and horse and rider combinations during a Competition Year will count towards OHJA Schooling Year End Awards from the date they become an OHJA member and will not be retroactive for points.

## 3. Points; Classes.

- (A) **Points.** Points for Schooling Year End Awards will be determined according to the Points Table applicable to the Schooling Year End Awards.
  - (1) Classics do not count for year end awards; only Hunter I-IV and Hunter U/S.
  - (2) Points in SS Hunter, LS Hunter, Beginner Rider Hunter, Intermediate Rider Hunter, Rusty Stirrup Hunter and Modified Ch/AA Hunter are awarded based on horse/rider combination with the rider being a current member of OHJA. All other Hunter section points are based on the horse which is owned by a current OHJA member.
- (B) Riding Not to be Judged. As provided in the Section 3.13(C) of the OHJA Bylaws, in OHJA Recognized Schooling Competitions riding not to be judged is allowed. *Provided*, in any hunter seat equitation class, only the rider's first round may be judged and in any hunter class only the horse's first round may be judged regardless of rider (professional, junior, or amateur).
- (C) OHJA Zones. Points will be maintained separately for OHJA Zones 1 and 2. A rider's OHJA Zone will be determined by (i) his or her residence if in state or (ii) by the rider's election on the rider's membership application if his or her residence is out of state. A rider's points will accumulate in the rider's OHJA Zone as so determined regardless of the location of the OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (D) OHJA Recognized Competitions. Only points awarded at OHJA Recognized Competitions will count towards the Schooling Year End Awards.
- (E) Number of Riders. USEF Rules will be followed (as if the USEF Rules applied to Schooling classes) to determine if a class has sufficient entries for the class to count towards the Schooling Year End Awards. The number of riders will be determined from the report made by the OHJA Recognized Competition. If the number of riders is not known points will be awarded on the basis of three to ten riders shown.
- 4. **Horse/Rider Eligibility.** It is the responsibility of the rider or the owner or lessee of the horse to verify whether the rider or the horse is eligible for a section, class, or award.

#### PART II—OHJA RATED HUNTER SEAT EQUITATION PROGRAM Classes, Sections, and Awards

## 1. Pony Hunter Seat Equitation Classes

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Awards for Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be presented to the eligible 17 year old and under riders accumulating the most points while riding in Pony Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year.

#### 2. Children's Hunter Seat Equitation Classes

(A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.

## (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility:

- (1) Subject to USEF Rules.
- (2) Children's Hunter Seat Equitation classes will be open only to junior riders who do not compete in any class with fence heights higher than 3'3" at the same OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Awards for Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be presented to the eligible 17 year old and under riders accumulating the most points in Children's Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year.

#### 3. Junior Hunter Seat Equitation Classes

(A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.

## (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility:

- (1) Subject to USEF Rules.
- (2) Junior Hunter Seat Equitation classes will be open to junior riders who are not entered in Children's equitation classes at the same OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Awards for Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be presented to the eligible 17 year old and under riders accumulating the most points in Junior Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year.

## 4. Adult Hunter Seat Equitation Classes

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Awards for Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be presented to the eligible adult riders accumulating the most points in Adult Hunter Seat Equitation classes during the Competition Year.

## 5. OHJA Beginner Medal

## (A) Class Requirements

- (1) A minimum of three riders must compete to fill the class.
- (2) The class must be split if there are 30 or more entries and cannot be split if there are less than 30 entries.
- (3) The OHJA Beginner Medal Class will be shown over a figure-eight course of at least eight obstacles with heights at 2'3" and spreads to 2'3". The course will have at least two changes in direction (lead).
  REOUIRED: Additional tests (tests 1-10) of the top four to six riders are required.

## (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (1) Rider must be an OHJA Member; if a rider becomes a Member at an OHJA Recognized Competition in which the OHJA Beginner Medal Class is held, the rider must have delivered the dues and membership application to the show secretary before the rider competes in the OHJA Beginner Medal Class at that OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (2) Not open (for judging) to any rider who has ridden in any class with fence heights 2'6" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show. No professional riders will be allowed to enter.
- (3) Rider must not ride in any 2'6" or higher class at the same show.

## (C) OHJA Awards.

- (1) A medal will be awarded to the winning rider by OHJA.
- (2) Riders who place qualify for the OHJA Beginner Medal Ride-Off. EXCEPTION: Once a rider jumps 2'6" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show, they are no longer eligible to compete in the OHJA Beginner Medal Ride-Off.

## 6. OHJA Beginner Medal Ride-Off

## (A) Class Requirements

- (1) To be held during each Competition Year.
- (2) A minimum of three riders must compete to fill the class.

- (3) To be organized by the OHJA Horse Show Committee.
- (4) Ride-Off entry fees to be paid by OHJA.
- (5) Course requirements and additional tests (1-10), will be consistent with courses for OHJA Beginner Medal Classes. The course must be challenging, yet jumpable, and suitable for the OHJA Beginner Medal Ride-Off.
- (6) Ride-Off class may not be combined with any other class.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Open to riders who placed in any OHJA Beginner Medal Class held at any OHJA Recognized Competition either (i) during the Competition Year or (ii) during the preceding Competition Year if the rider qualifies for the OHJA Beginner Medal Ride-Off after it has been held in the preceding Competition Year. *Provided*, three riders competed in any of the foregoing classes in order for the class to be a qualifying class for the OHJA Beginner Medal Ride-Off and the rider has not jumped 2'6" or higher at any USEF, OHJA or HJEO show.

#### (C) OHJA Awards.

- (1) Ribbons through eighth place will be awarded at the Ride-Off.
- (2) Gold, silver, and bronze plaques will be presented at the Annual OHJA Awards Banquet.
- (3) The OHJA Beginner Medal Trophy will be presented at the Annual OHJA Awards Banquet to the rider winning the OHJA Beginner Medal Ride-Off.

#### 7. OHJA 3' Medal Class.

All OHJA recognized competitions must include this OHJA 3' Medal Class, the "Jack and Daisy Moore Memorial" Class.

#### (A) Class Requirements

- (1) No age break out is permitted.
- (2) A minimum of three riders must compete to fill the class.
- (3) The class must be split if there are 30 or more entries and cannot be split if there are less than 30 entries.
- (4) The OHJA 3' Medal Class will be shown over a figure-eight course of at least eight obstacles with heights at 3' and spreads to 3'. The course will have at least one oxer and two changes in direction (lead).
  REQUIRED: Additional tests (tests 1-14) of the top two to six riders are required.

#### (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (1) Rider must be an OHJA Member; if a rider becomes a Member at an OHJA Recognized Competition in which the OHJA 3' Medal Class is held, the rider must have delivered the dues and membership application to the show secretary before the rider competes in the OHJA 3' Medal Class at that OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (2) Rider must meet USEF definition of being a junior rider or an amateur rider; no professional riders will be allowed to enter.
- (3) Rider must not have won the OHJA 3' Medal Class during the current Competition Year or the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off.
- (4) Rider must not ride in any 3'6" or higher equitation class at the same show.

#### (C) OHJA Awards.

- (1) A medal will be awarded to the winning rider by OHJA.
- (2) Riders who place qualify for the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off.

## 8. OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off

#### (A) Class Requirements.

- (1) To be held during each Competition Year.
- (2) A minimum of three riders must compete to fill the class.
- (3) To be organized by the OHJA Horse Show Committee.
- (4) Ride-Off entry fees to be paid by OHJA.
- (5) The OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off course requirements and additional tests (1-14), will be consistent with courses for the OHJA 3' Medal Class. The course must be challenging, yet jumpable, and suitable for the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off.
- (6) An equitation course over hunter style fences.
- (7) Ride-Off class may not be combined with any other class.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Open to riders who place in an OHJA 3' Medal Class either (i) during the Competition Year or (ii) during the preceding Competition Year if the rider qualifies for the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off after it has been held in the preceding Competition Year. *Provided*, three riders competed in any of the foregoing classes in order for the class to be a qualifying class for the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off. A rider may compete in both the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off and the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off in the same Competition Year.

## (C) OHJA Awards.

- (1) Ribbons through eighth place will be awarded at the Ride-Off.
- (2) Gold, silver, and bronze plaques will be presented at the Annual OHJA Awards Banquet.
- (3) The Jack and Daisy Moore Memorial Perpetual Trophy will be presented at the Annual OHJA Awards Banquet to the rider winning the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off.

## Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Class.

9.

## (A) Class Requirements

- (1) No age break out is permitted.
- (2) A minimum of three riders must compete to fill the class.
- (3) The class must be split if there are 30 or more entries and cannot be split if there are less than 30 entries.
- (4) The Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Class will be shown over a figure-eight course of at least eight obstacles with heights at 3'3" and spreads to 3'3". The course will have at least one oxer and two changes in direction (lead). REQUIRED: Additional tests (1-19) of the top four to six riders are required.

## (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (1) Rider must be a Member of OHJA; if a rider becomes a Member at an OHJA Recognized Competition in which the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Class is held, the rider must have delivered the dues and membership application to the show secretary before the rider competes in the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Class at that OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (2) Rider must meet USEF definition of being a junior rider or an amateur rider; no professional riders will be allowed to enter.

## (C) OHJA Awards.

- (1) A medal will be awarded to the winning rider by OHJA.
- (2) Riders who place qualify for Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off.

# 10. Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off

## (A) Class Requirements.

- (1) To be held during each Competition Year.
- (2) A minimum of three riders must compete to fill the class.
- (3) To be organized by the OHJA Horse Show Committee.
- (4) Ride-Off entry fees to be paid by OHJA.
- (5) Course requirements and additional tests (1-19), will be consistent with courses for the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Classes. The course must be challenging, yet jumpable, and suitable for the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off.
- (6) Ride-Off class may not be combined with any other class.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Open to riders who placed in any Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Class held at any OHJA Recognized Competition either (i) during the Competition Year or (ii) during the preceding Competition Year if the rider qualifies for the OHJA Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off after it has been held in the preceding Competition Year. *Provided*, three riders competed in any of the foregoing classes in order for the class to be a qualifying class for the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off. A rider may compete in both the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off and the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off in the same Competition Year.

## (C) OHJA Awards.

- (1) Ribbons through eighth place will be awarded at the Ride-Off.
- (2) Gold, silver, and bronze plaques will be presented at the Annual OHJA Awards Banquet.
- (3) The Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Trophy will be presented at the Annual OHJA Awards Banquet to the rider winning the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off.

# 11. Oklahoma Equitation Class

## (A) Class Requirements.

- (1) The Oklahoma Equitation Class may be offered at any OHJA Recognized Competition where USEF Medal, ASPCA Horsemanship Class, USET Young Riders Class, USEF Adult Equitation Class, or any similar medal class except USEF Pony Medal, is offered but does not fill. More than one Oklahoma Equitation Class may be offered at a show.
- (2) Minimum of three riders must complete the course.
- (3) The class will be run in the same manner as the class it replaces.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Entries will be reopened to all Junior and Amateur riders. A win in the Oklahoma Equitation Class in any Competition Year does not eliminate that rider from participating in further Oklahoma Equitation Classes in the same Competition Year.

#### Hunter Seat Equitation Year End Awards

#### 1. Requirements for Awards.

- (A) **Combination/Division of Award Categories.** The award categories for the Equitation Year End Awards may be combined or divided if the entries warrant and if approved by the Board of Directors.
- (B) **Ties.** All ties for the Equitation Year End Awards will remain tied. In the event of a tie for Champion, equal awards will be presented and no Reserve Champion award will be awarded, and in the event of a tie for Reserve Champion, equal awards will be presented.

## 2. **Requirements for Riders.**

- (A) Minimum Competitions. To be eligible for the OHJA Schooling Year End Award in an award category, the rider must have competed in the section at a minimum of two (2) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year. In addition, they must have competed in a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year. *Exception*: If an award category is offered at only one (1) OHJA Recognized Competition during the Competition Year, the rider is eligible for a year end award provided they competed in that category at that show and they have competed in a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year.
- (B) Membership. Only points won by riders who are Members at the time the points are won will count towards the Hunter Seat Equitation Year End Awards.

## 3. Points; Classes.

- (A) **Points.** Points for the Equitation Year End Awards will be determined according to Appendix A—Points Tables for Rated Competitions.
- (B) OHJA Recognized Competitions. Only points awarded at OHJA Recognized Competitions will count towards the Hunter Seat Equitation Year End Awards.
- (C) Classes. Classes for which Equitation Year End Awards points will be awarded are:
  - (1) The following equitation classes count toward Equitation Year End Awards: open age; open equitation; non-qualifying open equitation championship; Oklahoma Equitation classes; and local, regional, national, and international equitation medal classes that do not have a win or point restriction. Examples of medal classes that count include USEF Pony Medal and USEF Adult Equitation; examples of medal classes that do not count, because of class specs, after stated number of wins a rider cannot continue to show in that class for the balance of that show year, include USEF Hunter Seat Medal, USET, ASPCA, OHJA 3' Medal, and Washington International.
  - (2) Hunter Seat Equitation classes in the OHJA Schooling Program (Part I of this CAP Manual) do not count toward Equitation Year End Awards.
- (D) Number of Riders. USEF Rules will be followed (as if the USEF Rules applied to Hunter Seat Equitation classes) to determine if a class has sufficient entries for the class to count towards the Hunter Seat Equitation Year End Awards. The number of riders will be determined from the report made by the OHJA Recognized Competition. If the number of riders is not known points will be awarded on the basis of three to ten riders shown.
- 4. **Horse/Rider Eligibility.** It is the responsibility of the rider or the owner or lessee of the horse to verify whether the rider or the horse is eligible for a section, class, or award.

#### PART III—OHJA RATED HUNTER PROGRAM Classes, Sections, and Awards

#### 1. OHJA Pre-Green Hunter Section

(A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules and USHJA Zone 7 specifications.

#### (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility.

- (1) No cross entries between 3'0" and 3'3" at the same OHJA Recognized Competition.
- (2) A pre-green horse is a horse of any age that has never shown in a recognized USEF Regular Member or Local Member show over fences 3'6" or higher. A horse may show in the Pre-Green Hunter Section of an OHJA Recognized Competition in no more than two Competition Years.
- (3) A horse that does not show at more than three shows prior to May 15 of a Competition Year at 3'6" or higher, may regain his pre-green status on a one-time basis. In order to regain pre-green status, the owner must:
  - (a) Notify USEF office by letter, via certified/return receipt prior to December 1 of the Competition Year, giving the horse's name and recording number (if the horse is not recorded, the horse must be recorded at that time); and
  - (b) Notify the OHJA Points Secretary, via certified/return receipt prior to resumption of showing pregreen in order to regain pre-green status with OHJA.
- (C) **OHJA Awards.** Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Pre-Green Hunter classes during the Competition Year. A horse may win the Champion award in Pre-Green Hunter only once, even if the horse regains pre-green status.

#### 2. Green Working Hunter Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Green Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

#### 3. Performance Hunter Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Performance Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

#### 4. Pony Hunter Classes

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (C) **OHJA Awards.** Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the ponies accumulating the most points in Pony Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

#### 5. Children's Hunter Classes

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules and USHJA Zone 7 specifications.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility: Subject to USEF Rules and Zone 7 specifications.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Children's Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 6. Junior Hunter Classes

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility: Subject to USEF Rules and USHJA Zone 7 specifications.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Junior Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

#### 7. Amateur Adult Hunter Classes

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules and USHJA Zone 7 specifications.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Subject to USEF Rules and USHJA Zone 7 specifications.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Amateur Adult Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

#### 8. Amateur Owner Hunter Classes

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Subject to USEF Rules.

(C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Amateur Owner Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## 9. Regular Hunter Classes

- (A) Class Requirements. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Subject to USEF Rules.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Regular Hunter classes during the Competition Year.

## Hunter Year End Awards

#### 1. Requirements for Awards.

- (A) **Combination/Division of Award Categories.** The award categories for the Hunter Year End Awards may be combined or divided if approved by the Board of Directors.
- (B) **Ties.** All ties for the Hunter Year End Awards will remain tied. In the event of a tie for Champion, equal awards will be presented and no Reserve Champion award will be awarded, and in the event of a tie for Reserve Champion, equal awards will be presented.

#### 2. Requirements for Horses.

- (A) Minimum Competitions. To be eligible for the OHJA Schooling Year End Award in an award category, the horse must have competed in the section at a minimum of two (2) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year. In addition, they must have competed in a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year. *Exception*: If an award category is offered at only one (1) OHJA Recognized Competition during the Competition Year, the horse is eligible for a year end award provided they competed in that category at that show and they have competed in a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year.
- (B) Membership. Only points won by horses owned by OHJA Members at the time the points are won will count towards the Hunter Year End Awards.

## 3. Points; Classes.

- (A) **Points.** Points for the Hunter Year End Awards will be determined according to Appendix A—Points Tables for Rated Competitions.
  - (1) Classics do not count for year end awards; only Hunter I-IV and Hunter U/S.
- (B) OHJA Recognized Competitions. Only points awarded at OHJA Recognized Competitions will count towards the Hunter Year End Awards.
- (C) Number of Horses. USEF Rules will be followed to determine if a class has sufficient entries for points in the class to count towards the Hunter Year End Awards. The number of horses will be determined from the report made by the OHJA Recognized Competition. If the number of horses is not known points for Hunter Year End Awards will be awarded on the basis of three to ten horses shown.
- 4. **Horse/Rider Eligibility.** It is the responsibility of the rider or the owner or lessee of the horse to verify whether the rider or the horse is eligible for a section, class, or award.

## **Additional OHJA Hunter Awards**

- 1. **True Blue Memorial Award.** Will be presented to the horse (other than a pony) accumulating the most points during the Competition Year in hunter classes (excluding OHJA Schooling Program Hunter classes, Part I of this CAP Manual). In the event of a tie, the horse winning the highest number of blue ribbons over fences will receive the award. To be eligible for this award, the horse must have competed in hunter classes at a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year.
- 2. OHJA Pony of the Year Trophy. Will be presented to the pony accumulating the most rated points in Pony hunter classes, i.e. Regular Pony Working Hunter (excluding OHJA Schooling Program hunter classes, Part 1 of this CAP Manual) at OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year. To be eligible for this award, the pony must have competed in hunter classes at a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year.
- **3. JESSI TURNER MEMORIAL TROPHY.** Will be awarded to the Junior Member, older or younger of OHJA, with the highest number of year end points in any single section.

#### PART IV—OHJA JUMPER PROGRAM Classes, Sections, and Awards

#### 1. .85 Meter Jumper (Up to 2'9") Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Fence heights .75M to .85M (2'6" to 2'9").
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in .75 to .85 Meter Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

#### 2. .90 to .95 Meter Jumper (2'11"-3'1") Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Fence heights .9M to .95M (2'11" to 3'1").
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in .90 to .95 Meter Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

#### 3. 1.0 Meter Jumper (3'3") Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Fence heights 1.0M (3'3").
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in 1.0 Meter Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

#### 4. Thoroughbred Jumper Section

- (A) Class Requirements. Any Jumper classes restricted to Thoroughbred horses.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs, juniors or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. OHJA Zone 1 and OHJA Zone 2: Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in OHJA Thoroughbred Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

#### 5. 1.05 to 1.15 Meter Jumper (3'5" to 3'9") Section

- (A) Class Requirements.
  - (1) Fence heights 1.05M to 1.15M (3'5" to 3'9").
  - (2) Class not specified Children's, Junior, Adult, or Amateur Owner.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in 1.05 to 1.15 Meter Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

## 6. **1.2 to 1.3 Meter Jumper (3'11" to 4'3") Section**

## (A) Class Requirements.

- (1) Fence heights 1.2M to 1.3M (3'11'' to 4'3'').
- (2) Class not specified Children's, Junior, Adult, or Amateur Owner.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in 1.2 to 1.3 Meter Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

## 7. Pony Jumper Section

- (A) **Class Requirements.** Course requirements will be in accordance with USEF Rules and USHJA Zone 7 specifications.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. In accordance with USEF Rules.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Pony Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

#### 8. Children's and Adult Jumper Section

#### (A) Class Requirements.

- (1) Children's and Adult Jumper Section may be split into a Children's Jumper Section and an Adult Jumper Section.
- (2) Course requirements will be in accordance with USEF Rules and Zone 7 specifications.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders must be children or amateur adults in accordance with USEF Rules.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most points in Children's and Adult Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

## 9. Amateur Owner and Junior Jumper Section

#### (A) Class Requirements.

- (1) The Amateur Owner and Junior Jumper Section may be split into an Amateur Owner Section and a Junior Jumper Section.
- (2) Fence heights and spreads in accordance with USEF Rules.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders must be amateur owners or juniors in accordance with USEF Rules.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses accumulating the most money in Amateur Owner Jumper and Junior Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

## 10. 1.35 to 1.45 Meter Jumper (4'5" to 4'9") Section

#### (A) Class Requirements.

- (1) Fence heights 1.35M to 1.45M (4'6" to 4'9")
- (2) Class not specified Amateur Owner or Junior.
- (B) Horse/Rider Eligibility. Riders may be amateurs or professionals.
- (C) OHJA Awards. Year End Champion, Reserve Champion, and ribbons through eighth place will be awarded to the horses winning the most money in 1.35 to 1.45 Meter Jumper classes during the Competition Year.

11. <u>Mules in Jumping Classes.</u> In accordance with USEF and USHJA, "Mules are not considered horses and therefore cannot compete in affiliated Hunter/Jumper events or regular classes held by a horse show." A show may offer a demonstration at their show where mules are allowed to jump in a demonstration or exhibition. However, no points will be given or awarded toward any class or championship at a show that is recognized by OHJA.

#### Jumper Year End Awards

## 1. Requirements for Awards.

- (A) Number of Horses. The Jumper Year End Awards for an award category will not be awarded if less than three horses have accumulated points in the award category during the Competition Year. Exception: If only one horse has accumulated points in a section during the show year, that rider will be presented a year end award providing it has shown and placed in that section at a minimum of three different shows.
- (B) Number of Competitions. The Jumper Year End Awards for an award category will not be awarded if classes in which a rider may accumulate points for the award category have been conducted in less than three OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year.
- (C) **Combination/Division of Award Categories.** The award categories for the Jumper Year End Awards may be combined or divided if the entries warrant and if approved by the Board of Directors.
- (D) **Ties.** All ties for the Jumper Year End Awards will remain tied. In the event of a tie for Champion, equal awards will be presented and no Reserve Champion award will be awarded, and in the event of a tie for Reserve Champion, equal awards will be presented.

#### 2. Requirements for Horses.

- (A) Minimum Competitions. Except as otherwise specifically provided, to be eligible for the Jumper Year End Award in an award category, the horse must have competed in that section at a minimum of three OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year.
- (B) Membership. Only points earned by horses owned by Members at the time the points are earned will count towards the Jumper Year End Awards.

#### 3. Points; Classes.

- (A) Classics do not count for year end awards; only Jumper I-IV classes count for points.
- (B) OHJA Recognized Competitions. Only points awarded at OHJA Recognized Competitions will count towards the Jumper Year End Awards.
- (C) Number of Horses. USEF Rules will be followed to determine if a class has sufficient entries for points in the class to count towards the Jumper Year End Awards. The number of horses will be determined from the report made by the OHJA Recognized Competition. If the number of horses is not known points for Jumper Year End Awards will be awarded on the basis of three to ten horses shown.
- 4. Horse/Rider Eligibility. It is the responsibility of the rider or the owner or lessee of the horse to verify whether the rider or the horse is eligible for a section, class, or award.

## **Additional OHJA Jumper Awards**

1. OHJA Jumper of the Year Trophy. Will be presented to the horse (other than a pony) accumulating the most money at OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year (excluding OHJA Schooling Program Jumper Classes, Part I of this CAP Manual). To be eligible for this award, the horse must have competed in jumper classes at a minimum of three (3) OHJA Recognized Competitions during the Competition Year.

#### Appendix A — POINTS TABLES

- 1. Schooling Points. Notwithstanding the rating of an OHJA Recognized Competition, points for Schooling Year End Awards in the following classes will be awarded through sixth place according to the following Schooling Class Points Table.
  - (A) Academy Short and Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.
  - (B) Academy Short and Long Stirrup Hunter Classes.
  - (C) Short Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.
  - (D) Short Stirrup Hunter Classes.
  - (E) Long Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.
  - (F) Long Stirrup Hunter Classes.
  - (G) Academy Beginner Rider Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.
  - (H) Academy Beginner Rider Hunter Classes.
  - (I) Beginner Rider Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.
  - (J) Beginner Rider Hunter Classes.
  - (K) Intermediate Rider Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.
  - (L) Intermediate Rider Hunter Classes.
  - (M) Rusty Stirrup Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.
  - (N) Rusty Stirrup Hunter Classes.
  - (O) Modified Children's/Adult Hunter Seat Equitation Classes.
  - (P) Modified Children's/Adult Hunter Classes.
  - (Q) Very Low Hunter Classes.
  - (R) Baby Green Hunter Classes.
  - (S) Low Hunter Classes.
  - (T) Open Hunter Classes.
  - (U) Children's Pony Hunter Classes.
  - (V) 2' Hunter Classes.
  - (W Thoroughbred Hunter Classes.
  - (X) .75 to .85 Meter Jumper (2'9") Section.
  - (Y) .90 to .95 Meter Jumper (2'11"-3'1") Section.
  - (Z) 1.0 Meter Jumper (3'3") Section.
  - (AA) Thoroughbred Jumper Section.

	·								
No. in Class	1 <sup>st</sup>	$2^{nd}$	3 <sup>rd</sup>	4 <sup>th</sup>	5 <sup>th</sup>	6 <sup>th</sup>	<u>CH</u>	<u>RC</u>	
3-10	10	6	4	3	2	1	<u>5</u>	<u>3</u>	
11-20	12	8	6	5	4	3	<u>5</u>	<u>3</u>	
21-30	14	10	8	7	6	5	<u>5</u>	<u>3</u>	
31 and up	16	12	10	9	8	7	<u>5</u>	<u>3</u>	

Schooling Class Points Table

## Appendix A — POINTS TABLES

Rated Competitions. Except as provided above for Schooling Year End Awards points for classes at each "A," "B," "C," 2. and "O" rated OHJA Recognized Competitions will be awarded according to the following Points Tables. Points will be awarded according to the following Points Tables based on the rating of the OHJA Recognized Competition, not the rating of the class.

Olion A Rated Competition Fonds Fable										
		Placing in Class								
No. in Class	1 <sup>st</sup>	2 <sup>nd</sup>	3 <sup>rd</sup>	4 <sup>th</sup>	5 <sup>th</sup>	6 <sup>th</sup>	7 <sup>th</sup>	8 <sup>th</sup>	СН	RC
3-10	15	9	7	5	4	3	2	1	10	5
11-20	17	11	9	7	6	5	4	3	10	5
21-30	19	13	11	9	8	7	6	5	10	5
31 and up	21	15	13	11	10	9	8	7	10	5

#### **OHJA "A" Rated Competition Points Table**

OlijA B Kated Competition Fonts Fable										
		Placing in Class								
No. in Class	1 <sup>st</sup>	2 <sup>nd</sup>	3 <sup>rd</sup>	4 <sup>th</sup>	5 <sup>th</sup>	6 <sup>th</sup>	7 <sup>th</sup>	8 <sup>th</sup>	СН	RC
3-10	10	6	4	3	2	1	-	-	5	3
11-20	12	8	6	5	4	3	-	-	5	3
21-30	14	10	8	7	6	5	-	-	5	3
31 and up	16	12	10	9	8	7	-	-	5	3

# **OHIA "R" Rated Competition Points Table**

OHJA "C" and "O" Rated Competition Points Table										
		Placing in Class								
No. in Class	1 <sup>st</sup>	2 <sup>nd</sup>	3 <sup>rd</sup>	4 <sup>th</sup>	5 <sup>th</sup>	6 <sup>th</sup>	7 <sup>th</sup>	8 <sup>th</sup>	СН	RC
3-10	5	3	2	1	-	-	-	-	3	1
11-20	7	5	4	3	-	-	-	-	3	1
21-30	9	7	6	5	-	-	-	-	3	1
31 and up	11	9	8	7	-	-	-	-	3	1

#### didian Dainta Tabl

#### Appendix B — OHJA AWARD RECIPIENTS

OHJA retains ownership of its perpetual trophies unless stated otherwise in the Award description. Trophies are presented each year at the OHJA Annual Awards Banquet. Recipients are responsible and liable for the OHJA trophy from the time of receipt and until it is returned to OHJA. Trophies are to be returned at the Fall Finale Show held the year in which the trophy is presented.

#### **ACTIVE Awards**

All That Jazz High Point Thoroughbred Award. This award is presented to the Thoroughbred horse accumulating the most points in both the Thoroughbred Hunter and Thoroughbred Jumper Sections. The High Point Thoroughbred Award is donated by Melissa Buffington in honor of her Thoroughbred and partner of 25 years, All That Jazz. All That Jazz embodied what a Thoroughbred horse is - versatile. Jazz was purchased as a very young off-the-track prospect for Melissa. In the mid-1990s, Jazz earned many tricolors and year-end awards in both the hunters and jumpers, taking Melissa from the Children's Hunter to the Junior Hunter, and eventually on to the JR/AO Jumpers and Mini-Prix. He also dabbled in eventing and dressage, but the big jumpers were where he really excelled. Not only did he jump in beautiful style, but his handiness in turns and Thoroughbred speed were valuable assets in the jumper ring. He continued to compete into his late teens when an injury halted his jumping career. After retirement from jumping, he continued to live happily many more years in Melissa's care, until his death in 2016 at the age of 28. This award celebrates the heart, versatility, and talent of the Thoroughbred horse. This award will be presented for 10 years beginning with the 2016 competition year, through 2025. At the end of the ten years the award will be retired and presented back to Melissa Buffington.

2016: Prospector	2017: Bonafide	2018: Superlagra
2019: Twelve N Oh	2020: Superlagra	2021: Falsete
2022: Peaceable	2023: Kottoncandy Kisses	

Jack and Daisy Moore Memorial Trophy (OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off). This trophy is presented to the winner of the OHJA 3' Medal Ride-Off. The trophy is in memory of two of the founders of OHJA, Jack and Daisy Moore. Daisy developed and published the *Post and Rail* for many years. She was noted for the funny cartoons and jokes she always included bringing a smile to the face of those who read the *Post and Rail*. Jack was one of the founding members of OHJA. He served as President for many years, helped draft and write the organization's constitution, and dedicated himself to improving and developing the sport within the state. Jack was crucial in the early days of OHJA because of his ability to bring coherence and harmony to OHJA.

1980: Chris Land	1981: Michael Hensley	1982: Courtney Stevenson
1983: Clare Winter	1984: Angie Hershberger	1985: Carlye Rose
1986: Sheila Hill	1987: Shannon Hicks	1988: Jennifer Zarintash
1989: Laura King	1990: Carrie Jenkins	1991: Zachariah Price
1992: Amy Lawson	1993: Fran Guterman	1994: Christine Benner
1995: Courtney Wulf	1996: Allison Wulf	1997: Dana Kavanaugh
1998: Amber Wilcut	1999: Kristin Wulf	2000: Kailyn Jefferies
2001: Jessica Yeager	2002: Shelby Knowlton	2003: Kristen Anderson
2004: Megan Marso	2005: Bridgette Bailey	2006: Brian Locke
2007: Jenny Mitchell	2008: Madgie Larson	2009: Rebecca Buchanan
2010: Morgan Carnahan	2011: Elizabeth Adelson	2012: Katherine Gayon
2013: Ashley Youngkin	2014: Tess Von Hemel	2015: Laurie Cromer
2016: Josie Atherton	2017: Julia Gross	2018: Joshua Swisher
2019: McKenzie Moser	2020: Stella Shdeed	2021: Ella Crawford
2022: Brooke Parkinson	2023: Ash Gass	

**JESSI TURNER MEMORIAL TROPHY.** This award is presented to the Junior Member with the highest number of year end points in any single section. Jessi Turner was dedicated to her horses and riding well. She spent countless hours working around the stables, grooming, cleaning or helping the younger equestrians at the barn. She enjoyed a challenge, often training Mustangs that others had given up on. Jessi never met a horse she didn't love. Although Jessi was not able to fulfill her dream of one day riding for her country, if there are horse shows in Heaven, she is at the top of the class, always wanting to jump just a little higher. Jessie was a treasured gift from God; she was so full of goodness and love, it filled her and spilled out to warm the hearts of those around her. The Jessi Turner Memorial Trophy is a tribute to Jessi, and an inspiration to young riders everywhere.

2011: Addie Minnick	2012: Lexi Mulkey	2013: Caitlyn Russell
2014: Sydney Schuppan	2015: Laurie Cromer	2016: Ashlynn Gass
2017: Ashlee McDaniel	2018: Aubrey Phillips	2019: Jordan Vanwinkle
2020: Ella Maine	2021: Lorelei Swisher	2022: Emily Johnson
2023: Ashley Frazier		

**OHJA Jumper of the Year.** The OHJA Jumper of the Year Trophy was donated by Afton Gray and is awarded to the Jumper accumulating the most money in rated jumper classes at OHJA Recognized Shows during the Competition Year.

2003: Flocon De Mielles	2004: Pardon My French	2005: Little Giant
2006: Pardon My French	2007: Stoli	2008: In The Groove
2009: Lawrence Du Desert	2010: Zanardii	2011: NTEC Sigo
2012: Livius	2013: Vantos V	2014: Girl Scout
2015: Renoir du Buisson	2016: Con Chino Z	2017: Never Say Never
2018: Akira TSP	2019: Raincheck	-

OHJA Beginner (2'3) Medal Winner. This award is presented to the winner of the OHJA Beginner Medal Ride-Off.

2022: Rylee Richardson 2023: Haley Dunn

Oklahoma (3'3") Medal Ride-Off. This award is presented to the winner of the Oklahoma 3'3" Medal Ride-Off.

1982: Janene Davis	1983: Stacey Cole	1984: Kim Tharp
1985: Kristi Newman	1986: Vanessa King	1987: Caryle Rose
1988: Renee Zarintash	1989: Caryle Rose	1990: Vanessa King
1991: Jennifer Zarintash	1992: Carly Perry	1993: Laura King
1994: Fran Guterman	1995: Christine Benner	1996: Fran Guterman
1997: Barbara Kirby	1998: Fran Guterman	1999: Barbara Kirby
2000: Jennifer Stout	2001: Jennifer Stout	2002: Jennifer Stout
2003: Leslie Yates	2004: Megan Pittman	2005: Sarah Milliren
2006: Sarah Milliren	2007: Blythe Taylor	2008: Sarah Milliren
2009: Courtney Billings	2021: Emily Skaggs	2022: Teagan Dawson

**True Blue Challenge Trophy for Horse of the Year.** This award is presented to the horse (other than a pony) accumulating the most points during the Competition Year in rated hunter classes. Dana DePalma donated this trophy in memory of her 16 hand gray quarter horse gelding after his untimely death at the age of 12. True Blue was unique to the show world because he competed equally as well in the hunter and jumper sections, amassing many championships and reserve championships at A, B, and C shows. He was three-time Quarter Horse World Champion—twice in the Jumper and once in the Hunter Section. He won numerous Zone 7 Awards, and was OHJA Horse of the Year four times—in 1978, 1979, 1980, and 1983, the year of his death.

1991: London Fog	1992: London Fog	1993: Midnight Express
1994: Classified	1995: Lucky Me	1996: All Daddy's Money
1997: Lucky Me	1998: Jensen	1999: The Sandman
2000: The Sandman	2001: Black Gold	2002: Dance Master
2003: Sycamore	2004: Stunning	2005: Millennium Edition
2006: Caldera	2007: La Boheme	2008: Stars and Stripes
2009: Montenero	2010: Uno	2011: Paris
2012: Shadow Box	2013: CR Casina	2014: Silver Creek's Whimsy
2015: Shenanigans	2016: Surprise	2017: S&L Pawling
2018: Corsika TSP	2019: Guinevere	2020: Quiet Prospector
2021: Bull Run's Rubicon	2022: Quiet Prospector	2023: Lord Dixon

**OHJA Pony of the Year.** The OHJA Pony of the Year Trophy was donated by Margie Barchus and is awarded to the pony accumulating the most points in rated pony hunter classes at OHJA Recognized Shows during the Competition Year.

2003: Elite Western Girl	2004: Elite Western Girl	2005: My Fair Lady
2006: Woodland's Silver Creek	2007: Woodland's Silver Creek	2008: Fair's Prince William
2009: Key Largo	2010: Key Largo	2011: Mascrade
2015: Debutante	2016: iJump	2017: Millcroft's Greystoke
2019: Millcroft's Greystoke		

**OHJA Schooling High Point Rider Award.** The OHJA Schooling High Point Rider Award is presented to the rider in each Zone who accumulates the most combined points in Schooling Hunter, Jumper, and Equitation classes.

<u>ZONE 1</u>	ZONE 2
2004: Asheley Stephens	Edee Black
<b>2005:</b> Taylor Werthan	Mallory Hensley
2006: Kristen Wright	Emily Banister
2007: Addie Minnick	Samantha Boyle
2008: Erin Swartz	Tess Von Hemel
<b>2009:</b> Bailey Page Tims	Tess Von Hemel
<b>2010:</b> Caitlin Russell	Megan Banner
2011: Lexi Mulkey	Kym Popp
<b>2012:</b> Caitlyn Russell	Claire Wilson
<b>2013:</b> Lily Redman	Kim Park
2014: Lily Redman	Emily Waul
2015: Madison Salach	Julie Gass
<b>2016:</b> Abbie Hollingsworth	Ashlynn Gass
<b>2017:</b> Kaylie Schneider	Ashlee McDaniel
<b>2018:</b> Aubrey Phillips	Jewell Bridwell
<b>2019:</b> Melissa Love	Jordan Vanwinkle
2020: Heidi Wakefield	Jaycee Baxter
2021: Lorelei Swisher	Olive Oden
<b>2022:</b> Emily Johnson	Bailey Bumpas
<b>2023:</b> Parker Vander Woude	Ash Gass

#### **RETIRED** Awards

**Dale Sneed, Jr. Memorial Trophy.** The Dale Sneed, Jr. Memorial Trophy was awarded to the high point Children's Hunter from 1986 through 1995. The trophy was in memory of Dale Sneed, Jr. who announced many OHJA shows. The trophy was retired in 1996 and presented back to Dale's daughter, Jane Ann Whisenant.

1986	Dejà Vu, Lee Harper	1987	French Silk, Shannon Hicks
1988	Twice As Nice, Marie West	1989	Double Dare, David Luke
1990	My Prerogative, Elizabeth Leake	1991	London Fog, Angie Nemecek
1992	Opportunity Knocks, Jennifer Paschal	1993	Gordon Lightfoot, Melanie Kilgore
1994	French Connection, Stacie Fox	1995	Dances with Wolves, Courtney Wulf

**French Silk Memorial Award.** The French Silk Memorial Trophy was awarded to the high point Junior Hunter from 1991 through 2000. The trophy was in memory of the 1988 and 1989 Junior Hunter Champion, French Silk, owned and shown by Shannon Hicks.

1991	The Caretaker, Jennifer Zarintash	1992	Ziplock, Sarah Lemons
1993	Canadian Mist, Amy Lawson	1994	Definitely, Christine Benner
1995	Espresso, Brady Dillingham	1996	Holiday, Fran Guterman
1997	Schoen'm All, Brooke Henning	1998	Page To Page, Dana Kavanaugh
1999	Almost Forever, Mary Riggs	2000	Almost Forever, Mary Riggs

**San Jose Memorial Trophy for Amateur-Owner Hunters.** The San Jose Memorial Trophy was awarded to the high-point, Oklahoma-Owned Amateur-Owner Hunter from 1991 through 2002. If the section was split and both younger and older group awards were given, this award was presented to the older group winner. The trophy was presented by Dr. Gene Reynolds in memory of the dark brown, 16.3 hand thoroughbred gelding, San Jose, who died in March of 1991 at age 27. Having just two owners in his life (The Pape Family of Oklahoma City and Gene Reynolds of Tulsa), San Jose's career was varied. He took part in dressage and steeplechase events and was champion many times in the Regular Working, Junior, and Amateur-Owner Hunter sections. He was among the first group of horses to be registered by OHJA, and competed at the very first OHJA show. Since that show finished after dark, automobiles surrounded the arena and he completed his courses in a ring illuminated by car lights.

1991	Buckwheat, Cathi Stout	1992	Exec Sec, Kathy Chiaf
1993	Exec Sec, Kathy Chiaf	1994	Not awarded
1995	Double Dutch, Cheri Cadieux	1996	Lucky Me, Jody Livak
1997	Lucky Me, Jody Livak	1998	Jensen, Diane Heaton
1999	The Sandman, Jennifer Stout	2000	The Sandman, Jennifer Stout
2001	Benevolent, Nancy Cowden	2002	Hercules, Allison Sturges

**Sump'n Special Trophy for Pony of the Year.** The Sump'n Special Trophy was presented by Windbreak Farm and the Tharp Family for the pony hunter that accrued the most points at OHJA recognized shows. Sump'n Special was an outstanding pony hunter, owned and ridden by Kim Tharp, that achieved National, Zone, and State Honors. Wanting to provide an award for the achievement of pony riders, it was hoped the award would encourage pony riders to achieve a high level of success.

1991	Brittany Isle, Jennifer Barrow	1992	Tristan's Piper, Sarah Hammock
1993	Tristan's Piper, Sarah Hammock	1994	Three Point Landing, Carly Glass
1995	Snaffles and Lace, Katie Morgan	1996	Brittany Isle, Christina Athens
1997	Pillow Case, Kristin Wulf	1998	Pillow Case, Kristin Wulf
1999	Pillow Case, Arielle Sonnenschein	2000	Snaffles and Lace, Meghan Chiaf
2001	Never Been Kissed, Kelsey Baker	2002	Never Been Kissed, Kelsey Baker

**George L. Noah Jumper of the Year Award.** The George L. Noah Trophy in honor of George L. Noah, was presented to the OHJA Grand Champion Jumper from 1991 through 2002. Mr. Noah came to the sport of hunter-jumper riding later in life than most. He married the grandmother of an adult rider and became immediately fascinated with the sport. He started a breeding program and especially enjoyed watching his jumpers perform. Though Mr. Noah died in 1990, his horses continued to compete under the name of George L. Noah Trust, and his horses won the award in 1991 and 1992. After its award in 2002, the trophy was retired to Mrs. George L. Noah.

1991	Anglet, Cindy Williams	1992	Magneto, George L. Noah Trust
1993	Magneto, George L. Noah Trust	1994	Homer, Shannon Hicks
1995	The Phoenix, Becky Bynum	1996	Richmond, Sarah Hammock
1997	Richmond, Sarah Hammock	1998	Garth, Karen King
1999	Flabbergasted, Christine Benner	2000	Hi Fly, Pie Lafferty
2001	Charlie's Heart, Michelle Reynolds	2002	Charlie's Heart, Michelle Reynolds

**David Peterson Memorial Award.** The David Peterson Memorial Trophy was awarded to the high point Pre-Green Hunter from 1995 through 1997. The trophy was in memory of David Peterson who competed as a junior and adult exhibitor in Oklahoma. The Peterson family was one of the early founding families of OHJA.

1995	Ramblin Around, Pamela Bell	1996	All Daddy's Money, Summer Snead
1997	Tattoo, Catherine Willner		

**Millhouse Memorial Trophy for Adult Equitation.** Cathi Carroll presents the Millhouse Memorial Trophy to the rider accumulating the most points in Adult Hunter Seat Equitation classes during a Competition Year. The trophy is in memory of Cathi's 15.2 hand, dark brown gelding Millhouse, who died March 3, 2000 at age 26. Millhouse and Cathi competed in the Amateur Owner Hunter and Adult Equitation sections for eleven years. They are in the OHJA record books many times, but perhaps their finest hour was in 1984 when Millhouse and Cathi went undefeated in USEF Adult Equitation classes and were awarded the Oldfield Farm Trophy for the National Adult Equitation Championship. Millhouse Memorial Trophy was retired in the year 2011 and presented back to Ms. Cathi Carroll.

2000	Jennifer Stout	2001	Jennifer Stout
2002	Jennifer Stout	2003	Mary Riggs
2004	Jennifer Stout	2005	Sarah Thompson
2006	Not Awarded	2007	Not Awarded
2008	Courtney Coulter	2009	Courtney Coulter
2010	Stayton Craig	2011	Retired

**Equestrian of the Year Award**. This award is in memory of an extraordinarily dedicated horse mom, Carol Torr, who sacrificed everything to follow and facilitate the dream of her child. With her unwavering support and love, she fostered a horse and rider combination whose grit and determination produced successes that matched those with seemingly unlimited financial resources. Her commitment has served as an incredible example and inspiration to riders that are competing in an industry that, at first glance, can appear to require a daunting financial commitment. This award recognizes those who have persisted in the equestrian field during good times and bad, naturally talented horses and challenging ones. They are in it for the love of the horse and the sport. Riding is a passion more than a hobby. To this rider, the glory is in the sense of accomplishment, not the ribbons or status. This award is dedicated to the true equestrian. This award was retired in the year 2016 and presented to Jennifer Stout, daughter of Carol Torr.

2004	Jennifer Stout	2005	Samantha Marquette
2006	Alyssa Hapgood	2007	Crystal Hardy
2008	Sarah Milliren	2009	Edee Black
2010	Morgan Carnahan	2011	Paizw Blaylock
2012	Not Awarded	2013	Morgan Sneed

**OHJA Mini Medal (2'6") Winner.** This award is presented to the winner of the OHJA Mini-Medal Ride Off. It was retired after its final presentation in 2021. This award was replaced with the OHJA Beginner Medal Ride Off (2'3") in 2022.

2003: Barri Platt	2004: Lauren Pinaroc	2005: Lauren Patterson
2006: Caroline Adelson	2007: Jodi Ness	2008: Elizabeth Adelson
2009: Amy Stacy	2010: McKenzie Casler	2011: Kayla Hill
2013: Jessica Killenbeck	2015: Madison Salach	2016: Ashlee McDaniel
2017: Hattie Couch	2018: Madison Dolan	2019: Ella Fulkerson
2020: Addy Ross	2021: Maci Schlesinger	

**Bill Yamanashi Memorial (Rusty Stirrup)** Bill Yamanashi was the ultimate Rusty Stirrup Rider. We all want to be as alive and active and enjoy life as much as Bill did in his senior years of life. Bill started riding when he was in his med 50"s which is late in life compared to when most people start their riding career. Bill started riding with Linda Keely when he was living in Tulsa and then rode with Carol Fulton before moving to the Oklahoma City/Edmond area where he worked in medical research. There, Bill met and started riding with Leslie Fritz. Bill and Leslie became very close friends as well as their rider-trainer relationship. There were times when Bill nearly drove Leslie crazy, but she nor anyone else that know him doubted his love of horses and riding. Bill always had this big smile on his face and he was happy and enjoyed himself at shows whether he won or lost because of what he loved most was the riding and being with his horse. Bill kept the carrot industry in business as he fed his horse and other times that he was not going to ride just to give his horse a carrot and have a talk. This award is given in memory of Bill Yamanashi to the Rusty Stirrup rider who accumulated the most points in Rusty Stirrup Hunter and Rusty Stirrup Equitation during the competition year at OHJA recognized shows and is a member of OHJA. This award was retired after its final presentation in 2016.

2008	Karen Gentry	2009	Jennifer Bianchi
2010	Tammy Barrett	2016	Sandy Haesloop

**Newt Hill Memorial Trophy.** This trophy is presented to the rider accumulating the most points in Amateur Adult Hunter classes at the OHJA Season's End Show. The trophy is in memory of Newt Hill. Mr. Hill learned about hard work and horses at an early age. As a boy he often held a lantern while his father, a Kiefer blacksmith, shod the huge draft horses used to develop the Oklahoma oil fields. A lifelong outdoorsman, Mr. Hill enjoyed riding in a variety of settings. In the fall he would hunt on horseback in Colorado. As a founder of the Pottawatomie County Sportsmen's Club he would patrol the Shawnee Lake area. And as a member of the Shawnee Round-Up Club he participated in numerous mounted parades down Main Street. Mr. Hill's involvement with horses lasted most of his life although he was a committed businessman and civic leader in Shawnee for over 40 years. He continued to support and encourage riders of all ages and abilities including the local therapeutic riding program at St. Gregory's College. Mr. Hill was a man of integrity who lived simply. To him "attitude and determination" were everything and it is in that spirit this trophy is dedicated. This trophy was retired after it was awarded in 2006 and was returned to Beth Nellis, daughter of Mr. Hill.

**Bonafide Memorial** This trophy was donated by Carlye Rose Graydon and Judie Blumenthal and is awarded to the OHJA rider accumulating the most points in Junior Hunt Seat Equitation classes, over fences and on the flat during the competition year at OHJA recognized shows. It is in memory of the small liver chestnut thoroughbred gelding named Bonafide, better known as "Fred," who graced the equitation and hunter record books in Oklahoma and across the country. Bonafide's and Carlye's first competition year together spanned only 6 short months yet he swept the OHJA Equitation division as well as the Small Junior Hunter division, won 3 USEF Medals, 1 USET Medal, 2 ASPCA Maclay medals, and had 21 wins or second places in Equitation flat and/or over fence classes. Bonafide was also USEF Zone VII reserve champion in Small Junior Hunter that year and they qualified for and attended the Maclay Semifinals in St. Louis, Missouri, and qualified for and attended the USEF Medal Finals in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. The following year, Bonafide and Carlye won the Oklahoma Medal Final, USEF Adult Medal, and had 13 equitation wins over fences and/or on the flat. The subsequent 2 years Bonafide took two junior riders to the Maclay semifinals, with those riders winning numerous USEF Medals, ASPCA Medals, USET Medals, over fence and flat equitation classes. Bonafide died August 9, 2006 at the age of 26. The Bonafide Memorial Trophy was retired in the year 2016.

20. 1110	Bonande Memoriai mopi
2006:	Sarah Milliren
2010:	Breanna Mutzig

2013: Elizabeth Adelson

2008: Sarah Milliren2011: Caroline Adelson

2009: Sarah Milliren 2012: Elizabeth Adelson